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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

HOUSTON DIVISION 
 
Repairify, Inc., d/b/a asTech, § 
  § 
 Plaintiff,  § 
  § CIVIL ACTION NO.  19-CV-1370 
v.  § 
  § 
AirPro Diagnostics LLC,   § 
   §  
  § 
 Defendant. § 
 

PLAINTIFF REPAIRIFY, INC.’S ORIGINAL COMPLAINT 
 

 Plaintiff Repairify, Inc., d/b/a asTech (“asTech”) files this Complaint against defendant 

AirPro Diagnostics LLC (“AirPro”). 

I. NATURE OF THE ACTION 

1. Plaintiff asTech offers remote scanning of automobile computer modules to auto 

repair shops and service centers nationwide.  asTech employs a unique technology and 

methodology that offers substantial advantages over competing aftermarket products.  After 

investing millions of dollars in testing and development, in mid-2016, asTech launched a 

redesigned and recreated version of its remote diagnostic device (hereinafter the “asTech Device”), 

that offers superior reliability and results.  asTech prides itself on conveying complete, honest, and 

accurate information to customers in its sales and marketing of the improved asTech Device.  As 

a result of both its improved asTech Device and its focus on honest and fair communication with 

customers, asTech has rapidly become a market leader in the automotive repair industry. 

2. AirPro is a competing company that was formed by two former asTech employees 

after they drove asTech’s predecessor into bankruptcy.  Rather than compete fairly in the 

marketplace on the merits, AirPro has sought to undermine asTech’s business relationships and 
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credibility in the industry by disseminating false and misleading comparative advertisements about 

asTech’s products and services.  AirPro has disseminated its false and misleading representations 

both on its website and through a targeted misinformation campaign of communications directly 

to customers and original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”).   

3. AirPro devotes an entire section of its website to a series of false and misleading 

representations about asTech’s products, asTech’s business practices, and comparisons between 

AirPro and asTech.  In addition to unfairly maligning asTech, AirPro has also fundamentally 

misrepresented its own capabilities to asTech’s customers, potential customers, OEMs, and other 

industry members.   

4. asTech has asked AirPro to stop making false representations in its advertising, so 

that the two companies can compete fairly on the merits.  However, AirPro has only escalated its 

misinformation campaign in response.  Not content with merely publishing false information on 

its website, AirPro has now sent a letter directly to asTech’s customers, OEMs, media outlets, and 

other industry participants attaching the false and misleading statements from its website and 

further unfairly maligning asTech’s products and integrity.   

5. AirPro’s willful and unfair competitive practices have irreparably damaged 

asTech’s business and caused unquantifiable damages.  asTech had no choice but to file this civil 

action and seek preliminary and permanent injunctive relief to address AirPro’s false advertising 

in violation of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1051 et seq.; business disparagement; intentional 

interference with asTech’s prospective business relationships; and defamation.   

II. THE PARTIES 

6. asTech is a Delaware corporation with its principal place of business in Plano, 

Texas.  asTech has a branch office in Houston, Texas and mobile and in-shop employees in 

Houston, Texas. 
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7. AirPro is a Florida limited liability company with its principal place of business in 

Jacksonville, Florida.  Upon information and belief, AirPro’s members are Lonnie E. Margol, 

Scotty West, and Stephen Casella, each of whom is a natural person and a citizen of Florida.   

III. VENUE AND JURISDICTION 

8. This Court has federal question jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 

§ 1331 because asTech asserts claims for false advertising under the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. 

§ 1125. 

9. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction over asTech’s state law claims pursuant 

to 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a) because they are so related to the claims in this action over which this Court 

has original jurisdiction that they form part of the same case or controversy. 

10. Additionally, the Court also has diversity jurisdiction over the subject matter of this 

action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332 because the matter in controversy exceeds $75,000, exclusive 

of interests and costs, and is between citizens of different states. 

11. This Court has personal jurisdiction over AirPro because AirPro conducts business 

in Texas (in fact AirPro’s Senior Vice President of Sales Frank LaViola resides in Houston, Texas 

and conducts business there), has committed tortious acts in Texas, and has intentionally directed 

its conduct against asTech in Texas, where the primary effects of that conduct were felt.   

12. Venue is appropriate in this judicial district under 28 U.S.C. § 1391 because AirPro 

conducts business in this district, has an employee in this district, and falsely advertised nationally 

and within this district.  AirPro is thus subject to personal jurisdiction in this district and therefore 

“resides” in this district as set forth in 28 U.S.C. § 1391(c)-(d) and § 1391(b)(1). 
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IV. ALLEGATIONS COMMON TO ALL CLAIMS FOR RELIEF 

A. The asTech Device and the Remote Scanning Market 

13. asTech has enjoyed enormous success since relocating to Plano, Texas in July, 

2015, and has become a market leader in the automotive repair industry through sales of its 

innovative and reliable remote scanning devices. 

14. asTech’s current success represents a dramatic reversal of fortune compared to its 

predecessor entity, the Collision Diagnostic Services (“CDS”) business of AES Technologies, 

LLC (“AES”).  CDS had been in the business of remote scanning of computer modules in 

automobiles and other vehicles.  CDS marketed and sold a product called “asTech” that performed 

remote scanning of automobile computer modules (the “First Gen asTech Device”).   

15. The previous owners of CDS developed the First Gen asTech Device in conjunction 

with Paragon Innovation, an engineering firm located in Richardson, Texas, and had the product 

manufactured by a third party, ACD, also located in Richardson, Texas.  Despite known issues and 

short-comings with the First Gen asTech Device, the previous owners went to market claiming 

OEM equivalency.   

16. The CDS business was ultimately not successful.  By 2015 the CDS business found 

itself in bankruptcy due to the failure of its previous management team.   

17. On July 21, 2015, asTech stepped in and bought the operating assets of CDS out of 

bankruptcy.  Among other assets, asTech purchased all of the rights to the First Gen asTech 

Device.   

18. During the due diligence process, the new owners’ initial research confirmed major 

deficiencies with the First Gen asTech Device, which included significant lack of coverage, 

missing communication on the vehicle’s on-board diagnostic system (“OBD II”) port, inability to 

communicate with the medium speed BUS and most importantly the inability to deal effectively 
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with internet latency issues.  The new owners also could not find any proof that the previous 

owners had validated their claims about the effectiveness of the First Gen asTech Device.  As a 

result of these issues, the new owners made the decision to immediately stop selling the First Gen 

asTech Device.    

19. asTech’s new owners spent the next 12 months and invested millions of dollars in 

research and development to address these deficiencies and create a better product.  asTech did 

extensive regression testing and field work on a next generation device, including by leveraging 

its relationship with Copart, Inc., the industry’s leading auto salvage auction company, which is 

headquartered in Dallas, Texas, to access hundreds of wrecked vehicles, in order to test that the 

product worked as promised.  Ultimately, asTech completely recreated its product.  The current 

asTech Device is not an enhanced version of the First Gen asTech device, but rather a completely 

new product, built from the ground up. In fact, the current asTech Device is manufactured by 

SVTronics, located in Plano, Texas, as the First Gen asTech device manufacturer went out of 

business.   

20. asTech introduced its new product to the market in July of 2016.  This second-

generation device performs all of the same functions as the First Gen asTech Device (and more), 

and addresses the deficiencies associated with the earlier device’s performance.   

21. asTech originally marketed the new device as the “asTech2” to differentiate it from 

the faulty First Gen asTech Device and convey to customers that this was a new product.  However, 

with an improved product, asTech’s customer base grew rapidly, and many of the new customers 

had no experience with the First Gen asTech Device.  As a result, the “asTech2” device soon 

became simply the “asTech” in the minds of consumers, and asTech now markets it exclusively as 
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the “asTech” (the “asTech Device”).  asTech stopped selling the First Gen asTech Device in July 

2015, and stopped servicing the First Gen asTech Device in December 2016. 

22. The asTech Device, now asTech’s primary product, is a patented remote diagnostic 

device that allows collision shops and repair technicians to have a vehicle scanned before or after 

repair work is done.  Scanning ensures that all of the vehicle’s issues are fully addressed and that 

all systems are working properly.  Although the asTech Device can connect to virtually any scan 

tool, the company has chosen to purchase and use OEM factory scan tools, based on their superior 

performance over aftermarket tools.   

23. The asTech Device allows asTech to remotely scan, diagnose, and/or program 

computer modules in automobiles that are located at body shops or other remote locations.  Modern 

automobiles can have up to 50 computer modules, which can control up to 80 percent of an 

automobile’s mechanical and electrical functions, such as braking, steering control, traction 

control, collision avoidance, and fuel oxygen systems.  When an automobile develops a fault 

associated with one of these functions, the associated computer module generates what is known 

as a “trouble code.”  To properly diagnose and repair the fault, a mechanic must be able to 

electronically scan the car’s computer modules to determine the trouble codes. 

24. Generally speaking, scan tools fall into two categories: OEM factory scan tools and 

aftermarket scan tools.  OEM factory scan tools are produced by each individual automaker and 

are specifically designed to work with each individual automaker’s own vehicles.  Most OEM 

tools either provide access to the vehicle build data in their tool or access the vehicle build data 

during the scanning process, ensuring all systems on the vehicle being scanned are present and 

functioning as designed.  An automaker’s OEM scan tool provides complete and up-to-date 

software that can scan and program all of the computer modules in vehicles made by that OEM 
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because they know what systems should be on a vehicle.  This is especially important following 

an automobile accident, since the vehicle may arrive at the repair shop with parts missing or have 

hidden undetected damage, which can only be determined using the OEM tool.   

25. Aftermarket scan tools, unlike OEM factory scan tools, are made by companies not 

affiliated with OEMs.  These scan tools provide basic scanning and programming capabilities for 

many cars, but lack the comprehensive capabilities of OEM factory scan tools.  A large reason for 

this is the OEMs do not provide the aftermarket scan tool suppliers with access to the vehicle’s 

build data.  Indeed, even the highest end aftermarket scan tools will not provide coverage for all 

computer modules for most cars and will be one to two model years out of date. 

26. Some OEMs do not even allow aftermarket scan tools to interface with their 

vehicles.  For example, 2019 Chrysler vehicles will not respond at all to certain aftermarket scan 

tools due to added encryption on the OBD II port. 

27. In other cases, an aftermarket scan tool may connect to a vehicle, but may report 

scan results inaccurately due to OEM updates that are not recognized by aftermarket scanners.  For 

example, if a 2018 vehicle has twelve computer modules, two of which are not functioning, an 

OEM scan tool would inform a user that ten of twelve modules are working correctly.  However, 

an aftermarket scan tool may only recognize the ten working modules and have no way of notifying 

a user that the two non-working modules even exist. 

28. Given the complexities of operating each individual OEM factory scan tool and the 

high stakes of electronic automobile repairs, asTech is careful to maintain an open dialogue with 

its customers about the limitations of scanning damaged vehicles remotely, including the makes 

and models of cars that asTech can reliably scan. 
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29. Thus, asTech differentiates itself in the market because its patented asTech Device 

and services perform comprehensive, up-to-date remote scanning and programming through the 

use of OEM factory scan tools.  asTech stands behind its asTech Devices and will provide 

replacement Devices at users’ requests without charge, except if the failure is obviously due to 

misuse or if the customer is not in good standing. 

B. The Formation of AirPro 

30. On information and belief, from 2013 to 2015, Lonnie E.  Margol was the chief 

executive officer of AES, overseeing the CDS business (including the First Gen asTech Device).  

During this time period, AES went bankrupt, and Mr. Margol’s employment was terminated prior 

to asTech’s acquisition of the AES assets.  Mr. Margol had no role in the development, 

implementation, or sale of the current asTech Device.  Therefore, Mr. Margol was only familiar 

with the bug-riddled First Gen asTech Device (which has not been sold since July 2015), and is 

completely unfamiliar with the current asTech Device. 

31. On or about April 11, 2016, Mr. Margol founded AirPro.  AirPro competes directly 

with asTech in Texas and throughout the United States, and offers a competing product called the 

AirPro (the “AirPro Device”), as well as competing remote automobile scanning services.   

32. In November 2015, Mr. Margol recruited Chuck Olsen to join him at AirPro.  Mr. 

Olsen had worked for AES and stayed with AES after it filed for bankruptcy.  Mr. Olsen was 

employed at asTech from July 21 to November 17, 2015, and was intimately familiar with the First 

Gen asTech Device.  As a result of their experience with First Gen asTech Device, both Mr. Margol 

and Mr. Olsen are well-aware of the differences between OEM factory scan tools and aftermarket 

scan tools, and the limitations of aftermarket scanners compared to those provided by auto 

manufacturers. 
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33. On information and belief, the AirPro Device is comprised of two aftermarket tools: 

one called Drew Tech and one called Autoenginuity.  The AirPro Device combines the aftermarket 

scanning capability of the Autoenginuity with the programming ability of the Drew Tech.  Neither 

Autoenginuity nor Drew Tech fully duplicates the capabilities and coverage of OEM scan tools.   

34. Therefore, the AirPro Device is limited in the makes of vehicles that it can correctly 

scan, and in the modules within each vehicle that it can recognize.  These limitations mean that 

the accuracy of the AirPro Device is significantly lower than the accuracy of OEM factory tool 

scans. 

C. AirPro’s False and Misleading Advertising Campaign 

35. Dating back to its founding, AirPro has targeted asTech through various misleading 

advertisements and acts of unfair competition.  Most egregiously, AirPro has consistently 

misrepresented its access to and use of OEM software and scan tools.  These tactics forced asTech 

to file suit against AirPro once before, in 2016.  Eventually a settlement was reached in that lawsuit, 

and asTech continued to grow its business and succeed in the marketplace. 

36. However, in recent months, AirPro has once again aggressively targeted asTech 

and adopted predatory tactics in its advertising and marketing. 

37. For example, in late 2018, AirPro used the ASTECH trademark as part of a paid 

Google search result.  Consequently, when a consumer searched for “asTech”, a paid 

advertisement appeared with the headline “Astech ǀ The Hybrid All In One Tool ǀ 

airprodiagnostics.com”, causing the paid search result to appear to be the asTech website, when 

the result instead went to the AirPro website.  AirPro thus hoped to deceive asTech customers or 

potential customers into going to the AirPro website when they were searching for asTech.  After 
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receiving notice of the deceptive advertisement from asTech, Google removed AirPro’s paid 

advertisement that used the ASTECH trademark.   

38. AirPro further escalated its activities in 2019.  In or about January 2019, AirPro, in 

an effort to lure away asTech’s customers and damage asTech’s relationships with OEMs, began 

engaging in false and misleading advertisements that claimed to compare AirPro to asTech.   

39. AirPro’s founders helped develop the First Gen asTech Device, but have no insider 

knowledge of the current asTech Device.  However, the AirPro website includes misleading 

statements suggesting that AirPro does have insider knowledge of the current asTech Device, and 

thus is qualified to compare the asTech Device with AirPro.  Specifically, on the current AirPro 

website, immediately preceding a false and misleading chart “comparing” asTech and AirPro, the 

following statement appears: 

Many ask us “What’s the difference between the AirPro & Astech?”  The founders 
of AirPro (Lonnie Margol & Chuck Olsen) were also the inventors and founders of 
the Astech device back in 2010.  They were committed to address the shortcomings 
of the Astech aftermarket communications device by developing the AirPro OEM 
compliant scan-tool to meet the needs of body shops confronted with the 
continuously evolving technologies of today’s vehicles. 

 
40. AirPro therefore presents its false and or misleading statements about the asTech 

Device as “facts” of which AirPro has inside knowledge.  However, the current asTech Device is 

completely different from the First Gen asTech Device, a fact that was heavily publicized in the 

marketplace.  Given their experience in the industry, AirPro’s executives know or reasonably 

should know that the asTech Device is very different from the First Gen asTech Device that they 

created.  By referencing their knowledge of the First Gen asTech Device, and then making false 

and/or misleading representations about “asTech” generally, AirPro is purposefully misleading 

current and prospective customers.   
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41. After falsely suggesting that AirPro has insider knowledge of the asTech Device, 

the AirPro website proceeds to make numerous false and/or misleading representations regarding 

asTech (screenshots of which are attached hereto as Exhibit A), including, without limitation:  

 
a. The website claims that, unlike AirPro, asTech does not provide “Evergreen 

Warranty – Tool Replaced When Hardware Improvements are Made at No Cost” 

(Ex. A at pp. 2, 7, 13, & 16) despite the fact that asTech in fact does not charge 

customers for updates or to replace a faulty device; 

b. The website purports to list “Scan Results” that show that the asTech Device 

“missed an Airbag safety system code” and “missed code C1280 engine circuit 

malfunction” without explaining what factory tools were used (if any), what car 

was “tested,” what version of the asTech device was used for the test, or any other 

circumstances supporting AirPro’s claim that the asTech Device “missed” trouble 

codes.  This purported “test” falsely suggests that the asTech Device misses codes, 

a claim that is not substantiated, and is contradicted by asTech’s own testing (id. at 

pp. 3–4, 14, & 18); 

c. The AirPro website states: “From the time of submission of a scan request, our 

technicians will remote into the AirPro attached to the vehicle within 10 minutes.” 

(Id. at pp. 2, 5, 13, & 15.)  But, given the inconsistency in incoming service requests 

from repair shops and the variation by make and model, it would be mathematically 

impossible to have a technician always remote into the vehicle within 10 minutes; 

d. The AirPro website states: “Because of the fluctuations in internet connectivity, 

Astech [sic] is limited in its ability to remotely perform many ADAS calibrations.” 

(id. at pp. 7 & 15) and has a “limited” ability “to Program and Flash Modules In-

house” (id. at p. 2.).  This is literally false.  asTech has the capability to perform 

ADAS calibrations and to program modules on vehicles listed in its coverage chart.  

asTech deliberately chooses not to perform ADAS calibrations remotely in 

situations where the shop technician has not been properly trained and the shop 

does not have the approved OEM targets and the physical space required to conduct 
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the calibration procedure.  Any attempt to do otherwise could result in a mis-

calibration, which in turn could cause serious harm or even death to the vehicle 

owner following a repair; 

e. The AirPro website states: “The asTech device is NOT a scan-tool . . . Scan-tool 

functions and capabilities are reduced to less than their original design when 

converted and transmitted in this manner [i.e., using asTech’s method].”  (Id. at p. 

8.)  This was an issue with the First Gen asTech Device marketed by Margol and 

Olsen.  AirPro has no basis to make this claim with respect to the new asTech 

Device.  asTech (along with many other online businesses) is able to address 

latency issues; 

f. The AirPro website includes the graphic labeled “Truth Campaign,” which purports 

to compare asTech and AirPro, and falsely states that AirPro has full OEM factory 

scanning capabilities because of the “OEM Scan Tool Software Applications 

resident directly on the AirPro Tool” (id. at pp. 10 & 12.)  This too is literally false.  

Not all OEMs provide the ability to download OEM diagnostic software, and upon 

information and belief, these software applications are not all resident directly on 

the AirPro Device; 

g. The AirPro website comparison chart lists various asTech capabilities in red as 

“Unknown” (the same color used where a device supposedly does not have the 

capability), and then lists “Yes” for the same capabilities for AirPro in green (id. at 

p. 13), misleading consumers into thinking that the asTech Device does not offer 

the “Unknown” features, when in fact asTech has all of the listed capabilities. 

42. AirPro’s false and/or misleading claims are not only damaging to asTech, but they 

recklessly endanger the consuming public, as they misrepresent the true capabilities and limitations 

of the AirPro device and the asTech Device. 

43. On April 3, 2019, asTech sent a cease and desist letter to AirPro regarding its false 

and misleading statements on its website. 
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44. In response to the letter, AirPro again further escalated its targeting of asTech.  

Instead of making an attempt to resolve the dispute or modifying its false claims, AirPro sought to 

further damage asTech’s reputation and business relationships.  AirPro responded by distributing 

PDF copies of the false representations on the AirPro website, along with asTech’s cease and desist 

letter and AirPro’s self-serving response, to untold dozens of AirPro and asTech customers, OEMs, 

and other industry participants, including media outlets.  With this packet, AirPro included a cover 

letter (attached hereto as Exhibit B) that both doubled down on its original false claims and added 

new misstatements.  That letter reads, in full:  

 

45. AirPro is correct that “[t]his is a critical matter of passenger safety and reliable 

consistent services.”  AirPro’s accuracy ends there, however.  It is AirPro, not asTech, who 

Dear Industry Leader, 

At AirPro Diagnostics we believe in the American values of honesty and fair play. We believe that the free 
market will choose the best products based on performance. Companies that stoop to besmirch their 
competitors using false and misleading information show poor judgement and frankly, we consider it un­
American. 

Astech and its staff have continued to distribute both verbally and in written format documents which 
negatively speak to AirPro Diagnostics abilities, our tool and services. Many of you have seen or heard of 
these false claims and have either informed us and/or forwarded the information to us. FAKE NEWS! 

We have repeatedly offered, in writing, to perform an independently monitored side-by-side comparison 
between our tools, methods and services to which Astech has failed to respond . 

Attached is a Cease and Desist document from as Tech to AirPro along with our response and the reference 
comparison chart from our website's "Truth Campaign·. We firmly stand by our statements on our website 
and in this formal response. 

The industry must ask this simple question; why has AirPro been approved by OEMs that have not approved 
asTech? We all know asTech claims to utilize OEM scan tools in their service centers. What some OEM 
engineers have uncovered was that the methodology by which the asTech obtains and translates the OEM 
code for transferring back and forth across the internet, opens opportunities for failure due to delayed 
responses and/or dropped data packets. 

This is a critical matter of passenger safety and reliable consistent services. 

We stand by our offer and challenge to allow a disinterested third party to test our system and services against 
the astech system. 

Know the Facts; Know the Truth! 

Please contact us with any questions or comments you may have. 

Sincerely, 

Chuck Olsen, on behalf of Team AirPro 

Case 4:19-cv-01370   Document 1   Filed on 04/15/19 in TXSD   Page 13 of 25



14 
 

endangers these objectives through its insistence on making and publishing factually 

unsupportable claims. 

46. Of particular note, it is misleading to assert “some OEM engineers have uncovered 

. . . that the methodology by which the asTech obtains and translates the OEM code for transferring 

back and forth across the internet, opens opportunities for failure due to delayed responses and/or 

dropped data packets.” (Ex. B at p. 1.)  asTech (like many other businesses that use the internet) 

is able to address the latency issues inherent in the internet and still provide consistent and reliable 

functionality.   

47. Moreover, by essentially telling asTech’s customers that asTech is a liar and 

implying that asTech endangers passenger safety, AirPro is irreparably harming asTech’s 

reputation and its customer relationships.  By continuing to publish such damaging statements, 

AirPro is highly likely to continue to cause asTech ongoing and irreparable harm.  AirPro’s false 

and misleading publications have already infected the automotive market.  On information and 

belief, a number of OEMs have begun to question asTech’s capabilities based on false 

representations made by AirPro.   

48. In addition, asTech has received multiple inquiries from customers regarding 

AirPro’s false statements.  For example, on or about April 11, 2019, one of asTech’s largest 

customers inquired about asTech’s purported lack of approval by OEMs due to AirPro’s false and 

misleading statements. 

49. As a result of these inquiries and AirPro’s false advertising, asTech has been forced 

to incur significant expense and spend a substantial amount of time and money attempting to 

correct the misimpressions created by AirPro’s misleading statements.   
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50. At least four of asTech’s customers have begun using the AirPro Device in lieu of 

the asTech Device in 2019, upon information and belief because they were enticed by AirPro’s 

false statements regarding its capabilities compared to asTech’s.  Overall, asTech’s analysis 

indicates that approximately 5% of asTech’s lost accounts have gone to AirPro.  The true customer 

loss is likely higher, as asTech customers may read AirPro’s false and misleading statements and 

decide to switch to a different provider other than AirPro.  In a recent survey, 25% of all of 

asTech’s non-AirPro losses nationwide occurred in the State of Texas, which suggests a concerted 

effort by AirPro to disparage asTech in its home state of Texas. 

V. COUNT ONE: FALSE ADVERTISING IN VIOLATION OF THE LANHAM ACT 
15 U.S.C. § 1125(a) 

 
51. asTech incorporates by reference the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 50 of this 

Complaint as if fully set forth herein. 

52. AirPro has made false and/or misleading statements, including, without limitation, 

the statements described in Paragraphs 1-50, in commercial advertisements, presentations and 

promotional materials, in violation of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125. 

53. The statements made by AirPro were directed to asTech’s actual or potential 

customers, automobile-repair professionals, and end users of automobile scanning services, all of 

whom make purchasing decisions with respect to those scanning services.  The members of the 

public to whom AirPro’s statements were directed comprise a substantial segment of asTech’s 

actual or potential customers. 

54. The statements made by AirPro have deceived or are likely to deceive actual or 

potential customers regarding asTech’s scanning services, AirPro’s scanners, and the products’ 

comparative capabilities. 
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55. The statements made by AirPro have materially influenced and likely will 

materially influence purchasing decisions in part because current or prospective customers, 

including automobile-repair professionals, are led to incorrectly believe that, among other things, 

AirPro’s scanners have superior capabilities, design, and outcomes when compared to asTech’s 

scanning services, causing current or prospective customers to choose AirPro’s scanners instead 

of asTech’s scanning services. 

56. The false and misleading advertising claims have resulted and likely will result in 

the loss of goodwill and the loss of current and prospective customers who, but for the false and 

misleading advertising claims made by AirPro, would have conducted business with asTech. 

57. AirPro’s and asTech’s products are sold in interstate commerce.   

58. The statements made by AirPro were placed into interstate commerce through 

AirPro’s website and distributions to members of the automobile industry in multiple states, and 

communicated directly to asTech’s customers and potential customers throughout the United 

States. 

59. AirPro knew its commercial advertisements and promotional materials were false 

and/or misleading or acted with intent to deceive or in reckless disregard of the truth of such 

statements. 

60. As a direct and proximate result of AirPro’s conduct, asTech has suffered and will 

continue to suffer irreparable injury, including, without limitation, loss of goodwill, damage to 

reputation, and actual and likely diversion of sales. 

61. As a direct and proximate result of AirPro’s conduct, asTech has incurred and will 

likely continue to incur actual damages, entitling asTech to injunctive relief, corrective advertising, 
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retraction of the false statements made by AirPro, treble damages, and attorneys’ fees and costs 

and the profits derived from the unlawful acts of AirPro. 

VI. COUNT TWO: BUSINESS DISPARAGEMENT 
 

62. asTech incorporates by reference the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 61 of this 

Complaint as if fully set forth herein. 

63. AirPro has published disparaging written statements about the asTech Device and 

asTech’s related services.  AirPro’s statements were made directly to asTech’s customers, 

prospective customers, and OEMs throughout the industry, as well as disseminated through 

AirPro’s interactive website.   

64. AirPro’s website is integral to its business, and customers are required to access 

that website and log into AirPro’s cloud-based system in order to submit scan requests, obtain scan 

reports, and download invoices.  Thus, each time an AirPro customer or any prospective customer 

accesses the website, they are confronted with AirPro’s disparaging representations about asTech 

and the asTech Device.   

65. AirPro has also made oral statements directly to customers, prospective customers, 

and OEMs regarding the asTech Device.   

66. The statements were disparaging because they cast doubt on the quality of the 

asTech Device, its capabilities, and the accompanying warranties.  AirPro accomplishes this by 

making direct statements about asTech’s Device as well as by “comparing” the AirPro Device 

side-by-side with the asTech Device and making a variety of statements about the products’ 

comparative qualities or capabilities.  (See generally Ex. A.)  An entire comparison table on 

AirPro’s website is dedicated to establishing that the asTech Device is an “aftermarket 

communications device” with various “shortcomings,” which AirPro’s founders were committed 

Case 4:19-cv-01370   Document 1   Filed on 04/15/19 in TXSD   Page 17 of 25



18 
 

to addressing with their own product.  (See Ex. A at pp. 2 & 13.)  Throughout, AirPro makes a 

variety of misleading statements, including that the asTech Device does not cover current model 

year vehicles and “misses” various safety system codes.  (Ex. A at pp. 2–4, 8, 13–15, & 18.) The 

gist of this campaign is clear: the asTech Device is purportedly deficient in so many material 

respects that it is unable to fulfil one of its most important functions—identifying safety system 

failures to ensure passenger safety.  (See id.; see also Ex. B at p. 1.) 

67. AirPro’s statements create a substantially false and disparaging impression by 

omitting material facts and juxtaposing other facts in a misleading way.  For instance, AirPro states 

that the methodology used by asTech “opens opportunities for failure due to delayed responses 

and/or dropped data packets.” (Ex. B at p. 1.) Though it is true that some latency is an inherent 

characteristic of the internet in general, the statement is misleading in its description of the impact 

of that inherent latency on the operation of the asTech Device.  To be sure, asTech (like a wide 

variety of manufacturers whose products transmit information over the Internet, including Tesla, 

which regularly releases “over-the-air” updates to its vehicles) has developed technology that 

accounts for and addresses these occasional latency issues without compromising the overall 

functionality of the device.   

68. The context of these statements demonstrates that AirPro intends to cast doubt on 

the quality of the asTech Device by calling into question the tool’s ability to perform its most basic 

function: identifying safety system failures.  (Ex. A at pp. 3–4, 9, 14, & 18; see also Ex. B at p. 1.) 

These statements further demonstrate an intent to paint asTech as an unethical competitor within 

the industry and a company with whom OEMs and customers should sever ties.   

69. The statements concern asTech’s economic interests because the statements go to 

the heart of asTech’s character as a business, its trustworthiness, and the quality of its product.  
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These statements not only directly bear on the core functionality and purpose of the asTech Device 

but also inform customers that the asTech Device’s alleged shortcomings pose “a critical matter 

of passenger safety and reliable consistent services.”  (Ex. B at p. 1.)  

70. AirPro published these statements with malice.  AirPro knew the statements in 

question were false, acted with reckless disregard for whether the statements were true, acted with 

ill will, and intended to interfere with asTech’s economic interests.   

71. AirPro’s false statements have caused injury to asTech, resulting in special 

damages.  asTech has been required to expend time, resources, and money in order to resolve this 

misunderstanding, and OEM and customer business relationships have been threatened or 

materially harmed.  These direct pecuniary losses are attributable to AirPro’s false 

communications because, on information and belief, those false statements have played a 

substantial part in damaging asTech’s reputation in the industry. 

72. Additionally, asTech has been required to undertake significant expenses to 

counteract AirPro’s false and misleading publications.   

VII. COUNT THREE: INTENTIONAL INTERFERENCE WITH PROSPECTIVE 
BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS AND CONTRACTS 

 
73. asTech incorporates by reference the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 72 of this 

Complaint as if fully set forth herein. 

74. Upon information and belief, AirPro has interfered with asTech’s prospective 

business relationships with its customers and OEMs by making false and disparaging statements 

that have caused customers and/or OEMs not to enter into business relationships with asTech.   

75. Moreover, asTech has ongoing business relationships with various customers 

and/or OEMs.  Upon information and belief, AirPro also knows of asTech’s ongoing business 

relationships with its customers and/or OEMs and has intentionally interfered with those 
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relationships by making false and disparaging statements directly or indirectly to customers and/or 

OEMs.   

76. AirPro’s actions in publishing these statements is independently tortious because, 

as described in Paragraphs 1-72, those statements are false, disparaging, and defamatory, 

regardless of the effect those actions have on asTech’s prospective business relationships with 

prospective and longtime customers and OEMs.   

77. Those defamatory and disparaging statements have prevented asTech from 

successfully developing its business relationships with certain would-be customers.   

78. Similarly, upon information and belief, the defamatory and disparaging statements 

have caused several existing customers to sever their ongoing business relationships with asTech.  

Various customers did not renew their agreements with asTech going forward.   

79. AirPro acted with a conscious desire to prevent these business relationships from 

occurring because AirPro has engaged in a targeted campaign to impugn asTech’s credibility and 

prevent members of the industry from dealing with asTech.  AirPro further communicated these 

defamatory statements directly to asTech’s and AirPro’s customers, which demonstrates a specific 

effort to convince those customers and prospective customers not to deal with asTech.   

80. Additionally, AirPro knew the interference was certain or substantially certain to 

occur as a result of its conduct.  The automotive industry is particularly concerned with passenger 

safety, and AirPro’s disparaging statements bear directly on that safety issue.  (See, e.g., Ex. B at 

p. 1.) 

81. asTech has suffered actual harm or damages as a result of that interference because 

asTech has lost the ongoing business of several customers and has had other prospective customers 
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reconsider engaging in business with asTech after receiving AirPro’s false and misleading 

publications.   

VIII. COUNT FIVE: DEFAMATION 

82. asTech incorporates by reference the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 81 of this 

Complaint as if fully set forth herein. 

83. AirPro has intentionally published statements to various customers and members 

of the industry directly, as well as indirectly by sending those statements to industry media outlets 

and publishing the same statements on its interactive website.  All of these statements are 

unambiguously defamatory based on the context.   

84. The statements made by AirPro refer to asTech and the asTech Device by name.  

AirPro’s website contains an entire segment devoted to its so-called “Truth Campaign,” which has 

the express goal of exposing “the difference between the AirPro & Astech [sic].”  (Ex. A at p. 1.)   

85. These statements expressly or impliedly asserted facts that are objectively 

verifiable, such as AirPro’s misleading side-by-side comparison charts, which make a variety of 

statements about the products’ qualities that are objectively verifiable.  (See generally Ex. A.)  

Such statements include whether the asTech Device covers current model year vehicles or 

“misses” various safety system codes.  (Ex. A at pp. 2–5, 8, & 13–15.)  

86. AirPro’s statements involve a matter of public concern because the statements 

directly implicate customer safety in the automobile industry.  AirPro has specifically warned 

customers that the asTech Device’s alleged shortcomings pose “a critical matter of passenger 

safety and reliable consistent services.”  (Ex. B at p. 1.) 

87. AirPro’s written statements are also libel per se as defined by Texas Civil Practice 

and Remedies Code section 73.001.  In particular, AirPro’s statements impeach asTech’s honesty, 
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integrity, virtue, or reputation by either directly stating or indirectly implying that the asTech 

Device is not only woefully inadequate for its intended purpose, but also poses a significant safety 

risk to passengers.  (Ex. B at p. 1.)  AirPro further posits that asTech’s attempts to “besmirch their 

competitors,” using allegedly “false or misleading” information, “show[s] poor judgment” and is 

“un-American.”  (Ex. B at p. 1.)  These statements are reasonably calculated to produce such 

results.  Not only do they imply that asTech knowingly or intentionally disregards passenger safety 

in developing and promoting the asTech Device, but that asTech engages in unethical business 

practices or even fraud in an effort to gain an unfair advantage over AirPro. 

88. AirPro’s written statements are defamatory per se under the common law because 

it has injured asTech in its occupation.  Among other things, AirPro alleges asTech has made 

misrepresentations to customers and OEMs in the industry regarding the capabilities and 

methodology of the asTech Device as well as spread false or misleading information about the 

AirPro Device.   

89. AirPro published these statements with actual malice.  AirPro knew the statements 

in question were false based on its experience with asTech in the past and its experience in the 

industry today.  AirPro is aware that omitting certain facts from its statements and graphics could 

leave a reader with a substantially false impression.  Upon information and belief, AirPro also 

purposefully avoids the truth by refusing to consult sources that can objectively verify the truth of 

its statements.  At the very least, AirPro is negligent in determining whether the statements are 

true.   

90. AirPro’s false statements are defamatory per se, which entitles asTech to a 

presumption of general damages.   
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91. Additionally, AirPro’s false statements directly and proximately caused injury to 

asTech.  As a result, asTech has suffered various general damages, including injury to asTech’s 

character and reputation within the industry.   

92. Further, AirPro’s false statements directly and proximately caused injury to asTech, 

resulting in various special damages, including loss of earning capacity and loss of past and future 

income.  asTech has also been required to undertake reasonably necessary measures to counteract 

AirPro’s defamatory statements to customers and OEMs. 

IX. COUNT SIX: EXEMPLARY DAMAGES 

93. asTech incorporates by reference the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 92 of this 

Complaint as if fully set forth herein. 

94. As described in Paragraphs 1-92, AirPro has engaged in a months’ long campaign 

of falsehoods with the express intent of causing substantial harm to asTech’s business by poisoning 

asTech’s relationships with OEMs and customers as well as by disparaging asTech’s reputation 

within the industry as a whole.   

95. asTech’s injuries have resulted from AirPro’s malice, which entitles asTech to 

exemplary damages under Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code section 41.003(a)(2).   

X. JURY DEMAND 
 

96. asTech hereby demands a trial by jury as provided by Rule 28(a) of the Federal 

Rules of Civil Procedure as to all issues or claims for which a jury trial is allowed.   

XI. PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, asTech respectfully requests entry of judgment in its favor and against 

AirPro as follows: 
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A. For judgment in favor of asTech and against AirPro on all of asTech’s claims, 

including that Defendant has engaged in false advertising, tortious interference with 

business relations, libel, and business disparagement; 

B. For a preliminary and permanent injunction prohibiting AirPro and each of its 

officers, agents and servants, employees, attorneys, and all others in active concert 

of participation with them, pursuant to Rule 65 of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure and 15 U.S.C. § 1116(a), from making false or misleading statements 

regarding the asTech Device and AirPro Device, including, without limitation, all 

statements set forth in Paragraphs 1-92 of this Complaint and set forth in the 

“AirPro vs.  asTech” page on the AirPro website, and requiring AirPro to retract its 

false and misleading statements; 

C. For an award to asTech of the damages it has suffered, including the costs of 

corrective advertising and/or profits wrongfully obtained by AirPro, as a result of 

AirPro’s wrongful conduct, in an amount to be determined by the trier of fact;  

D. For enhanced damages and/or profits awarded to asTech pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 

§ 1117(a) and other applicable law according to proof at trial; 

E. For asTech’s reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs, expenses, and interest pursuant to 

15 U.S.C. § 1117(a) and other applicable law;  

F. Exemplary damages;  

G. Prejudgment and postjudgment interest; 

H. Court costs; and 

I. For such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and appropriate. 
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Dated: April 15, 2019 Respectfully submitted, 
 

MCGUIREWOODS LLP 
 

By: /s/ Yasser A. Madriz     
Yasser A. Madriz  
Attorney-in-Charge 
Texas Bar No. 24037015 
Southern District of Texas Bar No. 39080 
JPMorgan Chase Tower 
600 Travis Street, Suite 7500 
Houston, TX 77002-2906 
Telephone:  (832) 255-6361 
Facsimile:  (832) 214-9931 
E-mail:  ymadriz@mcguirewoods.com 
 

Of Counsel: 
 

Lucy J. Wheatley (pro hac vice pending) 
Virginia Bar No. 77459 
Heidi E. Siegmund (pro hac vice pending) 
Virginia Bar No. 89569  
Gateway Plaza 
800 East Canal Street 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 
Telephone:  (804) 775-1000 
Facsimile:  (804) 775-1061 
E-mail:  lwheatley@mcguirewoods.com 
E-mail:  hsiegmund@mcguirewoods.com 
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JPMorgan Chase Tower 
600 Travis Street, Suite 7500 
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Telephone:  (713) 353-6662 
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Email:  mindest@mcguirewoods.com 
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AirPro & Astech Comparison
Many ask us “What’s the difference between the AirPro & Astech?” The founders of AirPro (Lonnie Margol & Chuck Olsen) were also the inventors and founders of 
the Astech device back in 2010. They were committed to address the shortcomings of the Astech aftermarket communications device by developing the AirPro 
OEM compliant scan-tool to meet the needs of body shops confronted with the continuously evolving technologies of today’s vehicles.

Some of the differences are listed below as well as in the diagram provided.

Comparison AirPro Astech

Scan Tool is Connected Directly to the Vehicle Yes No

Live OEM Software “Resident” Capable of Utilizing OEM Approved SAE J-2534 Yes No

Modifies and Translates Vehicle OEM Output Data to TCP/IP Language for Transmission Over the Internet No Yes

“10 Minute Response Pledge” Yes No

Ability to Perform Basic System Calibrations Yes Yes

Ability to Perform In-House ADAS Calibrations (with targets) Yes Limited

Able to Program and Flash Modules In-House Yes Limited

Cloud Based Diagnostics Management System Yes Unknown

Skills Based Routing to OEM Brand Specialists Yes Unknown

Services all 2019 and Prior Year Vehicles (except Tesla) No Excuse Chart! Yes No

Records All Scanning, Programming and Calibration Screen Sessions and Audio (optional) Yes Unknown

Quantifiable Cycle Time and Comeback Reductions Yes Unknown

AI (Artificial Intelligence) Enabled Yes Unknown

Totally Wireless Service via WiFi (programming, calibrations and road testing) Yes Limited

Evergreen Warranty – Tool Replaced When Hardware Improvements are Made at No Cost Yes No

Delays Scan Tool and Vehicle Data Responses by Adding Negative Response Codes into Data Stream Which Can Skew Results No Yes

Home What is AirPro ORION Info & News Contact Us Careers ORION Login

EXHIBIT A - PAGE 2
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Note: Compiled with assistance from the 2018 PTEN Scan Tool Guide

Email to Astech CTO Frank Terlap

In 2016 at the Vancouver Canadian Collision Industry Forum (CCIF) the results of a scan tool comparison test on a Toyota were delivered to the attendees. Among 
the results was a chart illustrating the ability of the tools to communicate with vehicle modules. Tools tested included the OEM scan tool, the Astech (OE Assisted) 
and an aftermarket tool. Below indicates the codes that were missed. One of the most important functions of a scan tool is to identify safety system failures. 

EXHIBIT A - PAGE 3
-

From: Lonnie Margol 
Sent: Monday, November 5, 2018 10:05 AM 
To: fterlep@astech.com 
Subject: AirPro / asTech comparison 

Frank, 

I appreciate you reaching out and the opportunity to discuss the need to test the AirPro side by 

side with the as Tech. As I mentioned Thursday evening, we had already targeted or spoken with 
multiple third party experts as well as various associations about participating. We have 

reached out to CIECA, ETI and other scan tool companies suggesting such a juxtaposition. 

Additionally we have recently met with an industry media group to gain their perspective and 

possible assistance with this much needed project. 

Now that the CIC body has voted to formally study the difference between OEM & Aftermarket 

Scan tools, we have authority to move forward with our comparison as well. The industry needs 
to understand the differences and capabilities of each of the tools and our remote solutions. I 

look forward to receiving your thoughts and suggestions as to how to accomplish these goals 

and ultimately assist repairers in their delivering a quality, SAFE repair. 

Sincerely, 

Lonnie Margol 
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Astech missed an Airbag safety system code B1831 OPEN IN CURTAIN SHIELD AIRBAG (D SEAT SIDE) SQUIB CIRCUIT SRS. In addition, it also missed code C1280 
engine circuit malfunction in the 4wd control ecu.

EXHIBIT A - PAGE 4
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CCIF PDF

The AirPro Comprehensive Solution

• Full Vehicle Service Features

Pre/Post scans, programming and calibrations. Few tools can perform ADAS calibrations, fewer yet programming events. Our Windows-based tablet included with 
the AirPro allows for our ASE Certified technicians to download the most current OEM software applications for services. No additional VCI cables or laptops are 
needed. Therefore, the breadth and depth of our coverage is superior to any aftermarket scan tool and all other scanning devices.

• Current Model Year Coverage

Most scan tools only cover full functionality up to 2018 and some 2019 vehicles. With the use of live OEM software loaded onto the AirPro, our complete solution 
covers all current model year vehicles (2019) and goes back to 1996 models**. If the dealer has the software, so does AirPro.

• Component Level Scanning 

Our technicians are trained to use what we call Component Level Scanning (CLS). Each of the systems in a vehicle is made up of a group of components. By being 
directly-connected to the vehicle, (no latency issues) our technicians get as close to the raw data (live data) as possible. We focus on plausible data, voltage 
reference, bidirectional control, system voltages & resistances. This gives us a complete picture of the health of the system. In-fact we see faults before they are 
reported by the control unit and communicate this to the Body Shop via our reporting system.

• “10-Minute Response Pledge”

From the time of submission of a scan request, our technicians will remote into the AirPro attached to the vehicle with 10 minutes. Other remote diagnostic 
company’s response times are often in the 45-60 minute range. Many times scans can be canceled potentially returning unsafe vehicles to the owner.

• Cloud-based “ORION” Enterprise Diagnostic Management System

Most tools will provide a .pdf report/document but no mechanism to store, manage, consolidate and build reports which can be accessed (with proper credentials) 
from any device worldwide. ORION also performs skills-based routing to ensure a qualified “brand-specialist” is quickly servicing your vehicles. Additionally, all full-
feature scan sessions and phone conversations are programmatically recorded, tagged and stored for future reference and validation at the client’s discretion***.

• Scan Tool and OEM Software “Resident” at the Vehicle 

EXHIBIT A - PAGE 5
-
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All vehicle manufacturers’ scan-tools are engineered and designed to be directly connected to the vehicle utilizing their most current software. Few tools have the 
capabilities to perform OEM software downloads. In order to do so, a laptop and VCI cable is needed as well as the ability to manage the OEM subscriptions for 
each manufacturer. The aftermarket communication interface device, (Astech) does not have these capabilities and is therefore NOT validated as OEM compliant.

• Uniquely Qualified ASE Certified Technicians 

Our technicians perform in-depth vehicle data analysis and test all PIDS and modules. Our certified technicians service the entire collision event, not just the 
deciphering of DTC codes. During the Pre-Scan process, our technicians use the opportunity to run a system integrity test on any system that could even remotely 
be compromised by the collision event. We use Component Level Scanning (CLS) of each component in these systems and include results in the report to the shop. 
During the Post-Scan process, we not only are focused on the collision area but also what could be compromised by the repair process.

• ADAS Calibrations Library

EXHIBIT A - PAGE 6
-
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AirPro clients have access to our extensive OEM library of ADAS specifications by vehicle make/model with the targets and vehicle set-up requirements. We train 
our customers on the initial set up and then perform the calibrations remotely connected to our tool. Because of the fluctuations in internet connectivity, Astech is 
limited in its ability to remotely perform many ADAS calibrations. Most other aftermarket tools have limited capabilities on ADAS as well.

• Cycle Time / Sublet Expense Reduction

Our patented solution significantly reduces cycle time and the need for sublet dealership repairs or calling in mobile diagnostic specialists. Our research indicates 
we can save minimally 50% over typical dealer sublet invoice costs.

*** These features can be disabled at the client’s request.

To ensure our services are adjusting to the ever-changing complexity of vehicles, AirPro Diagnostics continues to invest in and research new technologies as well as 
actively participate in a number of North American conferences (ETI, CIC, CIECA, NASTF) to ensure our tool and services meet the needs of the collision repair 
community for a safe and complete repair.

OUR SOLUTIONS:

The AirPro is a hybrid, all-in-one, ADAS ready scan-tool compromised of a: 10.8” Windows10 tablet, a high-level, OEM sourced proprietary scan-tool and a SAE 
J2534-2 device to interface with OEM direct software on demand.

The EuroPro is a more powerful hybrid, all-in-one, ADAS ready scan-tool compromised of a: 12.3” Windows10 tablet, a high-level, OEM sourced proprietary scan-tool 
and a SAE J2534-2 device to interface with European focused OEM direct software on demand. The extra processing capabilities of the EuroPro gives us the option 
to utilize more resource intensive applications with dealer-level programming permanently installed for Audi / VW, BMW / Mini Cooper, Volvo, Jaguar, Land Rover 
and Mercedes.

The FieldPro is our mobile solution which consists of a small, hand-held, dongle style VCI (vehicle communications interface) for connection to the vehicle’s DLC 
port and is operated with an application that is loaded on an IOS/ Android phone or tablet. Results are uploaded to ORION and immediately viewable for our highly 
skilled specialists to analyze and deliver a full report within minutes.

EverGreen Warranty – In order to ensure repair facilities, have access to the latest available scan tool hardware and software for long-term success, AirPro 
Diagnostics agrees to upgrade the tool at no additional charge when critical or necessary hardware updates are made.

Estimating system integration, CCC Secure Share, Mitchell, Audatex (in process)

AirPro Differences 
PDF

In-Depth Look

EXHIBIT A - PAGE 7
-
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This is a question we’ve been getting with increased frequency and will be answered with references as completely as possible. Several publicly available links are 
provided herein for more in-depth information.

The AirPro is a patented, remotely-controlled, OEM compliant scan-tool and programming system that is directly connected to a vehicle.

The AirPro has approximately 98% vehicle coverage from 1996 to current (2019) because of its unique combination of OEM and independent proprietary software. 
Yes, the AirPro uses both OEM and independent proprietary diagnostic software. The scan-tool software is directly connected to a vehicle and remotely accessed 
by AirPro Diagnostics’ highly skilled diagnostic specialists to interface with a vehicle’s control module network and systems to perform the various diagnostic 
procedures required on today’s vehicles.

The AirPro can; read and clear diagnostic trouble codes (DTC) on all systems, calibrate or program modules within OEM parameters, display live data streams 
(inputs and outputs), command bi-directional controls (the ability to make the controllers do things outside of a vehicle’s normal operations) for customized testing 
and diagnostics well beyond just displaying a list of trouble codes.

The Astech device is NOT a scan-tool. The Astech is an aftermarket interface interpreter (translator) which converts vehicle communication protocols to internet 
protocol (TCP/IP). Two Astechs, in two separate locations, are required for a remote connection to a vehicle from a scan-tool which is linked together by a non-OEM 
validated server via the Internet for this to work. A publicly available copy of the patent and method is available for review here: 
https://www.google.com/patents/US8688313

Scan-tool functions and capabilities are reduced to less than their original design when converted and transmitted in this manner. The inability of any product to 
convert, transmit and reconvert, automotive protocol data, within a scan-tool’s functional timing parameters, along with inherent differences between automotive 
protocol communication requirements and TCP/IP communication protocol standards, cause this reduction.

The Astech device also limits scan-tool functionality to only those automotive protocols which have been developed for conversion, thus limiting vehicle or module 
coverage even further. Hence the need for a “coverage chart” http://Astech.com/media/1185/cds-coverage-chart.pdf .  One might ask, “if the Astech supports the 
Chrysler wiTECH factory tool, as claimed, then why is it shown as model dependent or won’t support scanning or programming services on ALL FCA vehicles as the 
wiTECH is designed?” The same should be asked for every other manufacturer shown with limited coverage on the Astech coverage chart.

Also see https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/On-boarddiagnostics for publicly available definitions of several vehicle diagnostic and communication protocols

TCP/IP PROTOCOL SUITES

“TCP divides the data into proper sized chunks and then passes these chunks onto the network. It acknowledges received packets, waits for the acknowledgments 
of the packets it sent and sets timeouts to resend the packets if acknowledgements are not received in time. The term ‘reliable connection’ is used where it is not 
desired to lose any information that is being transferred over the network through this connection. So, the protocol used for this type of connection must provide the 
mechanism to achieve this desired characteristic.”

“For example: while downloading a file, it is not desired to lose any information(bytes) as it may lead to corruption of downloaded content.”

“UDP provides a comparatively simpler but unreliable service by sending packets from one host to another. UDP does not take any extra measures to ensure that 
the data sent is received by the target host or not. The term ‘unreliable connection’ are used where loss of some information does not hamper the task being fulfilled 
through this connection. For example, while streaming a video, loss of few bytes of information due to some reason is acceptable as this does not harm the user 
experience much.”

“At the next lower layer, IP adds its own information over the data coming from transport layer. This information would help in packet travelling over the network. 
Lastly, the data link layer makes sure that the data transfer to/from the physical media is done properly. Here again the communication done at the data link layer 
can be reliable or unreliable.”

See http://www.thegeekstuff.com/2011/11/tcp-ip-fundamentals/ to reference the above:

EXHIBIT A - PAGE 8
-

Case 4:19-cv-01370   Document 1-1   Filed on 04/15/19 in TXSD   Page 9 of 19



“Packet loss”

“Packet loss is typically caused by network congestion. When content arrives for a sustained period at a given router or network segment at a rate greater than it is 
possible to send through, then there is no other option than to drop packets. If a single router or link is constraining the capacity of the complete travel path or of 
network travel in general, it is known as a bottleneck.”

“Packet loss can be caused by several other factors that can corrupt or lose packets in transit, such as radio signals that are too weak due to distance or multi-path 
fading (in radio transmission), faulty networking hardware, or faulty network drivers. Packets are also intentionally dropped by normal routing routines (such as 
Dynamic Source Routing in ad hoc networks, [2]) and through network dissuasion technique for operational management purposes.”

See https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Packet_loss to reference the above

To connect to either a scan-tool or a vehicle for internet protocol conversions and transmission of scan-tool commands over the internet to a vehicle and/or for a 
vehicle to respond to a scan-tool for data requests or output commands, such as critical calibrations or tests, the internet and IT infrastructure conditions need to 
be perfect for reliability. When conditions are desirable valuable data and procedures can be performed. However, the Internet and conversion of data is not 
reliable enough for anyone to claim true OEM scan-tool functionality regardless of the tool being used. 

Because of time delays, and the inherent fluctuation of internet transmission or congested internet traffic, data packets can be dropped, re-arranged or delivered 
out of order causing skewed, inaccurate or incomplete data transmission between a vehicle and a scan-tool when transmitted over the internet.

Therefore, the reliability of the Astech to accurately calibrate vehicle safety systems on a consistent basis can be compromised due to these ongoing, 
uncontrollable factors.

Hopefully this information helps define the differences between the AirPro and the Astech and helps explain AirPro Diagnostics’ ability to provide OEM-level 
diagnostic, calibration and pre- or post-scanning services to the collision industry.

Happy Scanning!

AirPro vs Astech
• The following are FACTS
• This information was comprised from many different sources

EXHIBIT A - PAGE 9
-
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AirPro vs Astech 
PDF

EXHIBIT A - PAGE 10
-

Internet 

AirPro Model 

• Detailed reports of the vehicle scan 
• Recommendations on the vehicle repairs 
• Defines DTC possible causes and fixes 
• OEM Repair Procedures 
• OEM Position Statements with reports 
• Notification when an ADAS calibration will be required 

for the AirPro Technician on the completion scan 
AirPro Technician • Integration with CCC & Mitchell 

QEM Scan Tool SoftwareApplk:ations resident directly on the AirPro Tool 
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Astech Model 

Factory Scan 
Tool 
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Protocol Data 

Data is modified, f iltered, then 
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and-forth internet transmission 

an~forth internet transmission 

The disclaimers below are found at t he bottom of Astech scan reports. 
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While every attempt is made to provide accurate information on 
the Scan Report, the asTechTM device may not, in every 
circumsbnce, return the same information that would result from 
a scan performed with an OE scan tool proximate to the vehicle. 
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Quick Links Search Questions? Call Us

(904) 717-1711

11737 Central Parkway 
Jacksonville, FL 32224

Follow Us

CCC Integration Instructions

Position Statements

Support

Type and hit enter …

EXHIBIT A - PAGE 11
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Unmodified OEM Vehicle Protocol 
Data

Internet

AirPro Technician

Scan Tool Directly Connected to 
vehicle

OEM Scan Tool Software Applications resident directly on the AirPro Tool

AirPro Model

ORION

Diagnostic Management System Provides:

Detailed reports of the vehicle scan
Recommendations on the vehicle repairs
Defines DTC possible causes and fixes
OEM Repair Procedures
OEM Position Statements with reports
Notification when an ADAS calibration will be required 
for the AirPro Technician on the completion scan
Integration with CCC & Mitchell

Internet

Fluctuations of 
the internet

Astech Model

Factory Scan 
Tool

Tool 
Protocol Data

Astech 
Technician

Aftermarket Device

Aftermarket Device

Aft k t D i

Aftermarket Device

(904) 717-1711

The disclaimers below are found at the bottom of Astech scan reports.

CDS makes every attempt to provide the most reliable information available through the use of the asTech™ device, however;

DISCLAIMERS

ill be requireddddd 
tion scan

The disclai

Data is modified, filtered, then 
translated to “TCP/IP” for back-
and-forth internet transmission

Data is modified, filtered, then 
translated to “TCP/IP” for back-
and-forth internet transmission
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Many ask us “What’s the difference between the AirPro & Astech?” The founders of AirPro (Lonnie Margol & 
Chuck Olsen) were also the inventors and founders of the Astech device back in 2010. They were committed to 
address the shortcomings of the Astech aftermarket communications device by developing the AirPro OEM 
compliant scan-tool to meet the needs of body shops confronted with the continuously evolving technologies 
of today’s vehicles.   
 
Some of the differences are listed below as well as in the diagram provided.     
 
Comparison AirPro Astech 

Scan Tool is Connected Directly to the Vehicle Yes No 

Live OEM Software “Resident” Capable of Utilizing OEM Approved SAE J-2534 Yes No 

Modifies and Translates Vehicle OEM Output Data to TCP/IP Language for 
Transmission Over the Internet No Yes 

“10 Minute Response Pledge” Yes No 

Ability to Perform Basic System Calibrations  Yes Yes 

Ability to Perform In-House ADAS Calibrations (with targets) Yes Limited 

Able to Program and Flash Modules In-House Yes Limited 

Cloud Based Diagnostics Management System Yes Unknown 

Skills Based Routing to OEM Brand Specialists Yes Unknown 

Services all 2019 and Prior Year Vehicles (except Tesla) No Excuse Chart!  Yes No 

Records All Scanning, Programming and Calibration Screen Sessions and Audio 
(optional) Yes Unknown 

Quantifiable Cycle Time and Comeback Reductions  Yes Unknown 

AI (Artificial Intelligence) Enabled Yes Unknown 

Totally Wireless Service via WiFi (programming, calibrations and road testing) Yes Limited 

Evergreen Warranty – Tool Replaced When Hardware Improvements are Made 
at No Cost Yes No 

Delays Scan Tool and Vehicle Data Responses by Adding Negative Response 
Codes into Data Stream Which Can Skew Results No Yes 

 

Note: Compiled with assistance from the 2018 PTEN Scan Tool Guide

EXHIBIT A - PAGE 13
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In 2016 at the Vancouver Canadian Collision Industry Forum (CCIF) the results of a scan tool comparison test 
on a Toyota were delivered to the attendees. Among the results was a chart illustrating the ability of the tools 
to communicate with vehicle modules. Tools tested included the OEM scan tool, the Astech (OE Assisted) and 
an aftermarket tool. Below indicates the codes that were missed. One of the most important functions of a 
scan tool is to identify safety system failures. Astech missed an Airbag safety system code B1831 OPEN IN 
CURTAIN SHIELD AIRBAG (D SEAT SIDE) SQUIB CIRCUIT SRS. In addition, it also missed code C1280 engine 
circuit malfunction in the 4wd control ecu. 
 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT A - PAGE 14
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Looking for a comprehensive solution and a strong, proven partner capable of servicing all late model vehicles 
as well as quickly meeting the demands of the future?  
 

 Full Vehicle Service Features 
Pre/Post scans, programming and calibrations. Few tools can perform ADAS calibrations, fewer yet 
programming events. Our Windows based tablet included with the AirPro allows for our ASE Certified 
technicians to download the most current OEM software applications for services. No additional VCI 
cables or laptops are needed. Therefore, the breadth and depth of our coverage is superior to any 
aftermarket scan tool and all other scanning devices.  
 

 Current Model Year Coverage 
Most scan tools only cover full functionality up to 2018 and some 2019 vehicles.  With the use of live 
OEM software loaded onto the AirPro, our complete solution covers all current model year vehicles 
(2019) and goes back to 1996 models**. If the dealer has the software, so does AirPro.   
 

 “10-Minute Response Pledge”  
Other remote diagnostic company’s response times are often in the 45-60 minute range. Time is 
money!  
 

 Cloud-based “ORION” Enterprise Diagnostic Management System 
Most tools will provide a .pdf report/document but no mechanism to store, manage, consolidate and 
build reports which can be accessed (with proper credentials) from any device worldwide. ORION also 
performs skills-based routing to ensure a qualified “brand-specialist” is quickly servicing your vehicles. 
Additionally, all full-feature scan sessions and phone conversations are programmatically recorded, 
tagged and stored for future reference and validation at the client’s discretion***.      
 

 Scan Tool and OEM Software “Resident” at the Vehicle  
All vehicle manufacturers’ scan-tools are engineered and designed to be directly connected to the 
vehicle utilizing their most current software. Few tools have the capabilities to perform OEM software 
downloads. In order to do so a laptop and VCI cable is needed as well as management of the OEM 
subscriptions for each manufacturer. The aftermarket communication interface device, (Astech) does 
not have these capabilities and is therefore NOT validated as OEM compliant.    

 Uniquely Qualified ASE Certified Technicians  
Our technicians perform in-depth vehicle data analysis and test all pids and modules. Our certified 
technicians service the entire collision event, not just the deciphering of DTC codes.  
 

 ADAS Calibrations Library 
AirPro clients have access to our extensive OEM library of ADAS specifications by vehicle make/model 
with the targets and vehicle set up requirements. We train our customers on the initial set up and then 
perform the calibrations remotely connected to our tool. Because of the fluctuations in internet 
connectivity, Astech is limited in its ability to remotely perform many ADAS calibrations. Most other 
aftermarket tools have limited capabilities on ADAS as well.  
 

 Cycle Time / Sublet Expense Reduction 
Our patented solution significantly reduces cycle time and the need for sublet dealership repairs or 
calling in mobile diagnostic specialists. Our research indicates we can save minimally 50% over typical 
dealer sublet invoice costs. 

 
** As of 1/7/19 Kia, Hyundai and Porsche have not adopted the SAE J-2534-2 scan-tool functionality but are expected to in 2019. 

*** These features can be disabled at client’s request.  
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To ensure our services are adjusting to the ever-changing complexity of vehicles, AirPro Diagnostics continues 
to invest in and research new technologies as well as actively participate in a number of North American 
conferences (ETI, CIC, CIECA, NASTF) to ensure our tool and services meet the needs of the collision repair 
community for a safe and complete repair.  

OUR SOLUTIONS:  

The AirPro is a hybrid, all-in-one, ADAS ready scan-tool compromised of a: 10.8” Windows10 tablet, a high-
level, OEM sourced proprietary scan-tool and a SAE J2534-2 device to interface with OEM direct software on 
demand.  

The EuroPro is a more powerful hybrid, all-in-one, ADAS ready scan-tool compromised of a: 12.3” Windows10 
tablet, a high-level, OEM sourced proprietary scan-tool and a SAE J2534-2 device to interface with European 
focused OEM direct software on demand. The extra processing capabilities of the EuroPro gives us the option 
to utilize more resource intensive applications with dealer-level programming permanently installed for Audi / 
VW, BMW / Mini Cooper, Volvo, Jaguar, Land Rover and Mercedes. 

The FieldPro is our mobile solution which consists of a small, hand-held, dongle style VCI (vehicle 
communications interface) for connection to the vehicle’s DLC port and is operated with an application that is 
loaded on an IOS/ Android phone or tablet. Results are uploaded to ORION and immediately viewable for our 
highly skilled specialists to analyze and deliver a full report within minutes. 

EverGreen Warranty - In order to ensure repair facilities, have access to the latest available scan tool hardware 
and software for long-term success, AirPro Diagnostics agrees to upgrade the tool at no additional charge 
when critical or necessary hardware updates are made. 

Estimating system integration, CCC Secure Share, Mitchell, Audatex (in process) 
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Sampling of OEM Subscriptions

EXHIBIT A - PAGE 17

1/11/2019 American Honda Motor Company, Inc. - Service Subscriptions 

HONDA. 

WI m TEC:H 2 . C 
AirProOiagnostics .,":,. 

D,l...,b,ORION C. 
Thank you for your order! 

MOF'RR, 
-'-'---

We have successfu ll y processed your payment. A copy of this order has been emailed to you, 
Print a copy of this page for your records . 

Please follow the instructions below to download and/or install HDS software. Your tool is approved! Confirmation for Order #194373 

HDS software installation pass-c 

Subscription Receipt - Order Number~ 
Order Number: 277149 Kevin VanSloot 

Order Date: 2/9/2018 10:45:41 

Billing Information : 

. '"~ 

• 
acdelcotds@gm.com 

O To 1 airpro0055@comp uflash.com 
Your tool is no 

Your BMWTIS 1-Month (30-days) Subscription 

A bmwtis.com.subscriptions@service-solutions.com 

- To EBTechs 

(D We removed extra line breaks from this message 

A do-not- reply@helm.com 

- To lll Techs 
(D Cl irk here to downlo.,d pictures. To lwclp protecty~ur privilCY, Outbok prevented ~utomaticdownload of some pictures in this me-

Order#194373 Order Date: 1/8/2019 
Bill-to: Owner Contact Information: 
Contact Name: AirProDiagnostics Contact Name: AirProDiagnostics 
Address: 6873 Philips Industrial Blvd Address: 6873 Philips Industrial Blvd 
Address 2: Suite C Address 2: Suite C 

6873 PHI LLIPS INDUSTRI AL BLVD 
SUITE C 
JACKSONVI LLE, FL 32256 
904B869991 

ACDelcoTDS 

--"--------------<order Number: 

www.ACDelcoTDS.com 

581483 

Thank you for purchasing the BMWTIS 1-Month (30-days) Subscription. Your account is successfu lly upgr 

If you experience any difficulty logging into our system, please contact us at tissupport@bmwna.com. 

City: Jacksonville City: Jacksonv ille 
State/Province: Fl State/Province: Fl 
Postal Code: 32256 Postal Code: 32256 
Country: UNITED STATES Country: UNITED STATES 

ODro 
Auc)1 

Tllankyou fOfyou rorder ltissummariz:ed llelow 

ORDER CONFIRMATION 

Sl~nderd Shipping 

Attn : 404U33 
SUITEC 
6873 PHILIPS INDUSTRIAL OL\/0 
JACKSONVILLE, FL 322~0-:i029 
UNITED STATES 
P'l,um,(904)717-3223 
omail · - · - ..l&l!!l 

Order Dale: 

Transaction ID: 

Transaction Type: 

Authorization ID: 

Cred it Card: 

Bill To: 

12129/2018 

8ac9a4a867a172190167fa6fdf9209f4 

Reta il Sale 

044847 
VISA Ending with: 5660 

--··-·· ·-·· - .. ~-- -'m 
6873 Phillips Ind Blvd 
SuiteC 

Jacksonville, FL 32256-3029 

us 

Thank you for your business. 

s@airprodiag.com, and you can begin using A 

FW: New Subaru SSM Diagnostics software release now available for download 

- :,,, .. -- -- (AirPro Diagnos tics) 

Good afternoon Ai rPro Diagnost ics, 
SUBARU. 

Subaru has just completed their successful testing of the latest SSM diagnostic software release for the Afterma rket. 

1. Downloading the SSM software: Since you have an active 12-month subscrip tion for the SSM software, this SSM software 
month subscription that will be used with the DENSO. Please be sure to be using the laptop that will be utilized with the DE 

Phone: (904) 717-1711 Phone: (904) 717-1711 
Email: 
Payment Information: 
Credit Card: VISA 
,._ ......... 5660 

A charge from Helm-Ford Diag Software will 
appear on your credit ca rd statement. 

TIS Subscription - Confirmation of Order #IMS1300374068 

• 
tech info_toyota@equipmentsolutions.com 
To ) airpro0 103@compuflas h.com 

Q) We removed extra line breaks from this m essage. 

TOYOTA 
Dear Kevin Vanslooten, 

The Toyota Customer Services Divis ion thanks you for your recent Professional Diag 
TIS will provide you with access to the service information necessary to properly ma 

Your User Name is: "a~·~--~ -~~----
Your subscription type is: Professional Diagnostics 
Your subscription term is: 2 Day 
Your subscription Qty is: 1 
Your subscription start Date is: 8/22/2018 
Your account wi ll expire at: 8/24/2018 at 11 :59pm Pacific Time. 
Your Order Confirmat ion Number is: IMS1300374068 
Amount Billed: $65.00 
Credit Card: Visa *********1805 (exp 10/2018) 
Transaction Date: 8/ 22/2018 
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For more information, please visit www.airprodiagnostics.com or contact us directly at 
info@airprodiagnostics.com 

For Immediate Distribution 

Dear Industry Leader, 

At AirPro Diagnostics we believe in the American values of honesty and fair play.  We believe that the free 
market will choose the best products based on performance.  Companies that stoop to besmirch their 
competitors using false and misleading information show poor judgement and frankly, we consider it un-
American.  

Astech and its staff have continued to distribute both verbally and in written format documents which 
negatively speak to AirPro Diagnostics abilities, our tool and services.  Many of you have seen or heard of 
these false claims and have either informed us and/or forwarded the information to us.  FAKE NEWS! 

We have repeatedly offered, in writing, to perform an independently monitored side-by-side comparison 
between our tools, methods and services to which Astech has failed to respond.   

Attached is a Cease and Desist document from asTech to AirPro along with our response and the reference 
comparison chart from our website’s “Truth Campaign”.  We firmly stand by our statements on our website 
and in this formal response.  

The industry must ask this simple question; why has AirPro been approved by OEMs that have not approved 
asTech?  We all know asTech claims to utilize OEM scan tools in their service centers. What some OEM 
engineers have uncovered was that the methodology by which the asTech obtains and translates the OEM 
code for transferring back and forth across the internet, opens opportunities for failure due to delayed 
responses and/or dropped data packets.   

This is a critical matter of passenger safety and reliable consistent services. 

We stand by our offer and challenge to allow a disinterested third party to test our system and services against 
the astech system.    

Know the Facts; Know the Truth! 

Please contact us with any questions or comments you may have. 

Sincerely,  

Chuck Olsen, on behalf of Team AirPro 

11737 Central Parkway Jacksonville, FL 32224  (904) 717-1711 
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